
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 16 January 2020

Page 1

Agenda

Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone 01235 422520
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 8 January 2020
www.southoxon.gov.uk
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Thursday 16 January 2020 at 6.30 pm 
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:
Councillors

South Vale
Ian White (co chair) Nathan Boyd (co chair)
Sam Casey-Rerhaye Amos Duveen
Stefan Gawrysiak Hayleigh Gascoigne
Alexandrine Kantor David Grant
George Levy Mike Pighills

Preferred Substitutes

South
Ken Arlett
Anna Badcock
David Bretherton
Peter Dragonetti
Victoria Haval
Kellie Hinton
Caroline Newton
Jo Robb
Anne-Marie Simpson
Alan Thompson

Vale
Eric Batts
Samantha Bowring
Andy Foulsham 
Alison Jenner
Janet Shelley
Max Thompson
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include large 
print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special requirements 
(such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please 
give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

Margaret Reed, Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 16 January 2020

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Apologies for absence 
 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2. Minutes 
(Pages 4 - 6) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting 
held on 10 September 2019.  

3. Declarations of interest 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements 
 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5. Public participation 
 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.  

REPORTS AND OTHER ITEMS BROUGHT BEFORE THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FOR ITS CONSIDERATION 

6. Governance of the Oxfordshire Growth Board 
(Pages 7 - 18) 
 
To consider the head of partnership and insight’s report.  

7. Didcot Garden Town 
(Pages 19 - 55) 
 
To consider the head of partnership and insight’s report.  

8. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Pages 56 - 57) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are 



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 16 January 2020

Page 3

confirmed, the items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or 
rearranged without further notice.



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Joint Scrutiny Committee
held on Tuesday 10 September 2019 at 6.30 pm
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton OX14 4SB 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 
Members: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors:  Sam Casey-Rerhaye, Stefan Gawrysiak, 
Alexandrine Kantor, George Levy and Jane Murphy (in place of Ian White)

Vale of White Horse District Councillors:  Nathan Boyd, Andy Cooke, Hayleigh Gascoigne 
and David Grant 
 
Officers: 
Dylan Evans, Liz Hayden, Ian Matten, Adrianna Partridge, Donna Pentelow, Ron 
Schrieber and Ben Whaymand

Also present: 
South Councillors Maggie Filipova-Rivers and David Rouane. Vale Councillors Jenny 
Hannaby and Helen Pighills
Pete Dickson, Debbie Doohan and Francis Drew, Biffa; John Amatt, Jamie Coleshill and 
Kevin Williams, GLL

Sc.7 Apologies for absence 

South Councillor Ian White (substituted by Jane Murphy), and Vale Councillor Amos 
Duveen submitted apologies.

Sc.8 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2019 were agreed as an accurate record and 
were signed by the Chairman.

Sc.9 Declarations of interest 

None.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 Sc.2

Sc.10 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None.

Sc.11 Public participation 

None.

Sc.12 Performance review of Biffa Municipal Plc - 2018 

The committee considered the report of the head of housing and environment, which 
assessed Biffa Municipal Limited’s performance in delivering the household waste 
collection, street cleansing and ancillary services contract for the period 1 January to 31 
December 2018.

The report recommended that the contractor be awarded an overall rating of “Fair”.

South Councillor David Rouane, Cabinet member for housing and environment, introduced 
the report. Also present to answer questions were Vale Councillor Jenny Hannaby, 
Cabinet member for environmental and technical services, Liz Hayden, Head of Housing 
and Environment, Ian Matten, Environmental Services Manager and Pete Dickson, Debbie 
Doohan and Francis Drew, Biffa.

The report stated that the operational problems experienced in 2017, caused by the 
ageing fleet, continued to impact on the first six months of this review period resulting in 
the end of year Key Performance Targets (KPTs) being lower than would be expected 
from one of the councils’ contractors. While there was an improvement in eight out of the 
ten KPTs, compared with the previous review, it was not enough to change the overall 
classification.

There had been a significant improvement in performance in the first six months of 2019. 
With the exception of missed bins and levels of detritus, all targets were being met or 
exceeded and officers were confident that Biffa’s overall performance would be in a higher 
classification for 2019.

In response to members’ questions, the committee was informed that:

 With regard to KPT1, missed collections, a missed bin had to be reported within 24 
hours in order for it to be recorded and rectified.  It was vital, therefore, for residents 
to report any missed bins within this time frame.

 The levels of litter and detritus (KPT 4) were assessed by independent inspectors.
 With regard to KPT8, deliveries – replacement bins, the bin stock was relatively old 

but the number requiring replacement was not high when compared with other local 
authorities.

 The personal digital assistant (pda) used by crews identified missed bins.
 The need for improved communication to help ensure residents were aware of what 

should/should not go in each bin was recognised. 

RESOLVED: to support the assessment of Biffa’s overall performance of the household 
waste collection, street cleansing and ancillary services contract in 2018 as “Fair”.

Page 5



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 Sc.3

Sc.13 2018/19 performance review of Greenwich Leisure Limited 
(GLL) 

The committee considered the report of the head of community services which assessed 
Greenwich Leisure Limited’s (GLL) performance in delivering the joint leisure management 
contract for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.

The report recommended that the contractor be awarded an overall rating of “Excellent”.

Helen Pighills, Vale Cabinet member for community services introduced the report. Also 
present to answer questions were South Councillor Maggie Filipova-Rivers, Cabinet 
member for community services, Donna Pentelow, Head of Community Services, Dylan 
Evans, Active Communities Manager, Ben Whaymand, Leisure Facilities Team Leader, 
and John Amatt, Jamie Coleshill and Kevin Williams Hercus, GLL.

In response to members’ questions, the committee was informed that:

 With regard to Key Performance Targets (KPTs) 11,12 and 13, GLL was constantly 
working to reduce energy usage.

 Although there was no KPT regarding community participation, GLL was committed 
to working in partnership with the council to deliver a programme of community 
activities. 

 Gender neutral changing areas were provided where appropriate and as part of 
planned refurbishment works.

 The accuracy of the percentages set out in Annex F – client monitoring scores, 
would be reviewed.

GLL and officers agreed to explore a member’s suggestion to explore measures to reduce 
car usage as a first means of transport to leisure centres and encourage customers to 
walk, cycle or use public transport.

The committee congratulated GLL and officers on the contactor’s excellent performance  
in 2018/19.

RESOLVED: to support the assessment of GLL’s overall performance of the leisure 
management contract in 2018/19 as “Excellent.”

Sc.14 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings 

The committee noted its work programme.

The meeting closed at 7.55 pm

Page 6



Joint Scrutiny Committee

Report of Acting Deputy Chief Executive – Partnership and Planning 
Author: Andrew Down
Telephone: 01235 422300
Textphone: 18001 1235 422300
E-mail: andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk 

South cabinet member responsible: Sue Cooper
Tel: 01491 835631
E-mail: sue.cooper@southoxon.gov.uk 
To: Joint Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 16 January 2020

Vale cabinet member responsible: Emily Smith
Tel: 07879 640645
E-mail: emily.smith@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

Governance of the Oxfordshire Growth 
Board

Recommendation

That the committee notes the contents of this report.

Purpose of Report

1. Officers have been asked to report to the committee on a number of matters 
regarding the organisation and governance of the Oxfordshire Growth Board 
(OGB), and this document is the result.  

2. Committee members are referred to the background paper which was considered 
and agreed by the OGB at its meeting on 24 September 2019, and which can be 
found on line via the OGB’s website www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org.  This paper 
provides a good introduction to the OGB, and a description of the process by which 
a review is currently being conducted.

Scope and purpose of the OGB

3. The OGB was established in 2014 as a joint committee of the six councils of 
Oxfordshire (‘the partner authorities’), together with key strategic partners. It was 
set up to facilitate and enable joint working on matters concerning economic 
development, strategic planning and growth. The OGB’s establishment was 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sue.cooper@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:emily.smith@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


premised on strengthening partnership arrangements across Oxfordshire for 
pragmatic working on key strategic issues.  It does this by overseeing the delivery 
of cross-county projects that the councils of Oxfordshire are seeking to deliver in a 
collaborative way – between local authorities, the Local Enterprise Partnership and 
wider partners and stakeholders.  Generally, however, the Board does not have 
many decisions it does, or can, take. 

4. The OGB replaced the former Spatial Planning and Infrastructure Partnership, the 
Local Transport Board, and incorporated oversight of the 2014 City Deal with 
Government. The OGB’s operation has sought to align these strategic meetings 
under a single terms of reference and governing body.  The work of the OGB also 
tangibly demonstrates the partner authorities’ willingness to cooperate on strategic 
planning matters as required under the Localism Act 2011 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

5. The OGB has been a route through which Oxfordshire has engaged with 
opportunities to secure additional investment, such as through the Local Growth 
Fund, the Housing Infrastructure Fund and the £215m Oxfordshire Housing and 
Growth Deal.  The work of the Board has included sponsorship of the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050, the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy and joint leadership on the 
Oxfordshire Rail Connectivity Study.  There are, however, other emerging areas of 
common interest among the Board’s membership: the environment and climate 
change, healthy place-shaping, inclusive growth, One Public Estate and the Oxford 
to Cambridge Arc. 

6. The OGB operates to terms of reference which were updated in 2018 following the 
Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, though not formally and finally confirmed at 
South and Vale.  Officers anticipate that the terms of reference will be further 
amended during 2020 to reflect the outcome of the review of the OGB, and that the 
new revised terms of reference will need to be agreed individually by each partner 
authority.

Attendance at OGB meetings

7. Meetings of the OGB are open to the public.  The chairmanship rotates, usually on 
an annual basis from July to June, and is currently held by South Oxfordshire.  

8. Councillor representation is provided by the leaders or their nominated substitutes, 
and they are advised by one or both of the chief executive and the acting deputy 
chief executive – partnership and planning.

9. There is a scrutiny panel with three members from each of the six partner 
authorities.  Although it does not have the powers of a formal overview and 
scrutiny committee, the panel meets a few days in advance of OGB meetings and 
is able to scrutinise OGB reports and the work programme.  The chair of the panel 
attends meetings of the OGB in order to report on the panel’s work and to make 
recommendations to the OGB.

OGB resources

10.The accountable body for the OGB is Oxfordshire County Council.  

Page 8



11.The OGB does not employ any staff directly.  It has a director (part time), a 
manager and a democratic services officer who are employed by individual partner 
authorities and whose costs are shared.

12.Separately, the OGB holds a modest budget made up from contributions made by 
the partner authorities and used primarily to cover the costs of meetings.  This 
budget is held by the OGB manager.

13.A number of staff have been employed to work on the Oxfordshire Housing and 
Growth Deal.  They are employed by individual partner authorities and their costs 
are met from the capacity funding in the growth deal.

Decision-making by the OGB

14.Although the OGB is constituted as a joint committee, it can only make decisions 
on matters where it has delegated authority.  

15.The only function currently delegated to the OGB by South and Vale (as noted in 
our constitution) is “to oversee the delivery and implementation of the Oxford and 
Oxfordshire City Deal bid.”  The City Deal dates from January 2014 and its projects 
are largely complete.

16.Aside from the City Deal, no functions are currently explicitly delegated to the 
OGB, though the unapproved 2018 terms of reference would also include oversight 
of matters relating to the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal.  The OGB 
therefore cannot (and does not) make formal decisions.  Instead, the focus is on 
finding consensus on matters which are then subject to formal decision making 
within each of the partner authorities.

17.Specifically, the OGB does not have the power to bind any member authority to a 
decision.  The terms of reference (both the 2014 and 2018 versions) make this 
clear.

Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal

18.The OGB has a role to monitor and oversee the delivery of the Oxfordshire 
Housing and Growth Deal, which was agreed by all of the partner authorities 
through the council decisions taken in February 2018.  

19.The growth deal has a number of work streams.  The productivity stream is led by 
OxLEP (the local enterprise partnership) and is currently focussed on the local 
industrial strategy for Oxfordshire.  The other three work streams (infrastructure, 
affordable housing, Oxfordshire Plan 2050) each have a member subgroup of the 
OGB with councillor representatives from each of the partner authorities meeting 
on a regular basis.

20.The deal includes £30 million a year for five years to help accelerate infrastructure 
projects including road, rail, cycle routes and footpaths, as well as social 
infrastructure such as schools.  More than 40 projects have now been allocated 
funding for the five-year period.  The infrastructure programme is led by the county 
council.

21.There is a total of £60 million in the growth deal which is intended to bring forward 
more affordable housing.  Officers currently anticipate that a substantial scheme is 
likely to come forward soon in the Vale, subject to cabinet decision.

Page 9



22.The joint statutory spatial plan, Oxfordshire Plan 2050, will set out a high-level 
strategic plan for Oxfordshire.  As a joint plan it will be subject to adoption within 
the five local planning authorities by vote of each full council.

Review of the OGB

23.The background paper describes the parameters for the review of the OGB which 
is currently in progress.  Among other outcomes, officers anticipate that the review 
should lead to improvements in:

 clarity of the purpose of the OGB (and potentially a new name)

 transparency of its operations

 opportunities for genuine public participation.

24.The initial findings from the review are due to be presented to the OGB at its 
meeting on 28 January 2020.

Background Papers

 “Growth Board Review Scope”, OGB 24 September 2019
 

Page 10



www.OxfordshireGrowthBoard.org 

To: Oxfordshire Growth Board

Title of Report: Growth Board Review Scope

Date: 24 September 2019

Report of: Growth Board Director 

Status: Public

Introduction

1. The Oxfordshire Growth Board (‘the Board) was established in 2014 as a Joint 
Committee1 of the six councils of Oxfordshire (‘the partner authorities’), together 
with key strategic partners. It was set up to facilitate and enable joint working on 
matters concerning economic development, strategic planning and growth. The 
Board’s establishment was premised on strengthening partnership arrangements 
across Oxfordshire for pragmatic working on key strategic issues. It does this by 
overseeing the delivery of cross-county projects that the councils of Oxfordshire 
are seeking to deliver in a collaborative way – between local authorities, the 
Local Enterprise Partnership and wider partners and stakeholders.2 Generally 
however, the Board does not have many decisions it does, or can, take. 

2. The Board replaced the former Spatial Planning and Infrastructure Partnership, 
the Local Transport Board, and incorporated oversight of the 2014 City Deal with 

1 under s101 (5), 102 Local Government Act 1972 (LGA 1972) and s9EB Local Government Act 2000 (LGA 2000) and pursuant 
to the Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012.
2 As a Joint Committee, the Board may discharge executive functions, but each constituent authority retains the ability to 
exercise all executive and non-executive functions generally and specifically in relation to economic development including 
where applicable provision of housing, strategic spatial planning and strategic transport planning.

Executive Summary and Purpose:
This report sets out a proposed scope for the Growth Board Review. It considers 
what the key themes of the review will be, and what will not be included in the 
review. It also provides an overview of who will be involved in the review and 
how. The Growth Board in asked to approve the review scope, subject to any 
agreed alterations. 

Recommendation: 
That the Growth Board approves the scope and approach to the review of its 
role and functions as set out in this report.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 - Themes and questions to guide the review

Page 11



Government. The Board’s operation has sought to align these strategic meetings 
under a single Terms of Reference and governing body.3 The work of the Board 
also tangibly demonstrates the partner authorities’ willingness to cooperate on 
strategic planning matters as required under the Localism Act 2011 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

3. The Board has been a route through which Oxfordshire has engaged with 
opportunities to secure additional investment, such as through the Local Growth 
Fund, the Housing Infrastructure Fund and the £215m Oxfordshire Housing and 
Growth Deal. More recently, the work of the Board has included sponsorship of 
the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy and joint 
leadership on the Oxfordshire Rail Connectivity Study. There are however other 
emerging areas of common interest among the Board’s membership; the 
environment and climate change, healthy place-shaping, inclusive growth, one 
public estate and the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. 

4. The Board considers that it is now timely to review its role and function to ensure 
that the most pragmatic and effective arrangements are in place to enable 
collaboration and delivery on Oxfordshire wide priorities. This means reflecting 
on how the Board has operated to date and whether its structures and processes 
remain appropriate and fit for the future.  

Scope of the Review 

5. Officers supporting the Growth Board have devised a scope for the review based 
on engagement with the Growth Board’s membership and having regard to 
feedback received from various stakeholders, including the public, to date. The 
final draft of the review scope is presented within this report for the Growth 
Board’s consideration. 

6. In the lead up to this review, some stakeholders have requested greater clarity 
about the role and purpose of the Board, and there are some common 
misunderstandings about the Board’s functions and the roles of its membership. 
Some have called for increased public access to, and transparency of, the 
Board’s work. Administrative challenges have also arisen as a result the current 
meetings schedule, reporting process and the availability of resources. These 
are all issues that will be considered within the review. 

7. Many of these challenges are not unique to the Board however, and the Local 
Government Association (LGA) and the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS)4 both 
note that matters of public engagement, logistics, joint resourcing and agreeing 
cross-county objectives are challenging in other similar joint committee 
arrangements.5 

It is important that the role of local partnerships is considered in the long term 
and the role the Growth Board could play in that context. Accordingly, 
membership, format and function of the Board should be revisited to consider 

3 Oxfordshire Growth Board. 2014. Terms of Reference. 
4 Centre for Public Scrutiny. 2014. Growth through good governance. Available at: https://www.cfps.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/Growth-through-Good-Governance.pdf 
5 LGA. 2017. A Councillors Workbook on Scrutiny. Available at: 
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11%2064_Scrutiny%20for%20councillors_03_1.pdf 

Page 12

https://www.cfps.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Growth-through-Good-Governance.pdf
https://www.cfps.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Growth-through-Good-Governance.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11%2064_Scrutiny%20for%20councillors_03_1.pdf


how the Board’s work might better engage with non-local authority partners who 
also have a key role in shaping places within Oxfordshire.

8. Any pre-existing commitment made as part of the agreement with Central 
Government regarding the Housing and Growth Deal or other formal 
programmes of work will not form part of this review. The review will be resigned 
to the high-level purpose and processes of the Board only and this will not be a 
review of the Housing and Growth Deal itself. The governance arrangements 
associated with the Oxford to Cambridge Arc, agreement to participate in the 
formation of a Joint Statutory Spatial Plan, and individual councils’ own 
governance arrangements, for example, will be excluded from this review.

Approach to the Review 

9. The Review will be managed by the Growth Board Director and Growth Board 
Manager in line with the agreed scope. Subject to approval by the Board on 24 
September 2019, the review will be divided into three distinct themes; role and 
function, capability and resources, and process and structures. 

10. Within these themes are a sub-set of questions which will help guide the review 
(appendix 1). These questions provide a thematic framework for; assessing how 
effective the Board is in its role, a structure for inviting contributions to the review 
and presenting conclusions. This framework is based in part on existing public 
sector guidance on well-led governance reviews. A summary of the three themes 
for the review is set out below:

Role and Function

11. The role of the Board is not well understood, and the starting point for this work 
should be a fundamental review of the Board’s role and how it might change. 
Consideration should also be given to what the Board’s role could be going 
forward, and how its status as a cross-county forum of leaders from key 
institutions could benefit Oxfordshire and its residents. This will require the Board 
to reflect on its objectives, how it communicates those objectives, and how 
aligned or otherwise they are with existing workstreams and commitments.

12. The Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, which was agreed in April 2018, has 
brought new responsibilities agreed with Central Government. Beyond a recent 
focus on this work however, the Board has increasingly sought to utilise its 
current remit to seek consensus on other cross-county issues. The Board has 
limited decision-making powers, but it can facilitate local debate and 
collaboration on issues for which each member may exercise their local 
influence over. Whichever role the Board undertakes, there needs to be greater 
clarity about the Board’s its decision-making powers. Any revised role will require 
the Board’s Terms of Reference to be updated and agreed, which also provides 
an opportunity to consider changing the Board’s name if required. 

Capability and Resources

13. The review should consider what capacity the Board has available to deliver its 
objectives and fulfil its current role, and what capacity it might need in the future 

Page 13



to address any new functions it undertakes. The Board’s staffing arrangements 
have until recently relied on good will partnership arrangements between the 
Oxfordshire Councils, drawing on existing resources within those authorities. 
There has however been a recent focus to secure more stable fixed-term staffing 
arrangements to support the development of the Growth Deal and the 
functioning of the Board. Consideration needs to be given to whether the current 
workforce enables the Board to fulfil its role and function now and into the future. 

14. The Board’s membership has evolved over time and so has its areas of focus. A 
fresh look should be taken as to the role of Board members, voting and non-
voting, and whether the membership could be different or more fluid to meet the 
demands of its current role, or any new direction. 

Process and Structures

15. Finally, the Board’s governance structure should be reviewed to ensure it is fit for 
purpose and allows for swift but transparent decision-making at the right levels. 
This includes reviewing what function each of the bodies supporting the Board 
serves and the value they add. 

16. There is a need for transparency and clarity as to what decisions are needed, 
and where decisions are taken, so that the role of the Board as a ‘decision 
maker’ is properly understood. A critical challenge for the review is to identify 
how councillors and members of the public and stakeholders can engage with 
the Board’s work where appropriate. This includes reviewing public participation 
procedures, the use of social media and the style of meetings that are held, for 
example. 

17. The production of reports and the schedule of meetings requires review to 
ensure that information is produced in a timely manner, with enough time made 
available for the public, councillors and officers to prepare for those meetings. 
The relationship between the scheduling of the Board, Advisory Sub-groups and 
the Scrutiny Panel require review to reduce delays and bottlenecks in the 
reporting process. 

Review Engagement

18. Subject to agreement, the review will commence on 24 September 2019. Its 
conclusions and process will be public facing and recommendations for 
improvement will be presented to the Board on 28 January 2020 for 
consideration. The following engagement activities are expected to be 
undertaken during the review period:

a) A public survey will be issued online asking broad questions in line with 
those included at appendix 1. These will allow free text to be entered. 
Questions will be broad enough to allow responses from officers, 
councillors and members of the public. Data will also be gathered to help 
understand any demographic weighting in the responses. The survey will 
be available via the Growth Board’s webpage from 25 September 2019. 

Page 14



b) A workshop with the membership of the Growth Board. This will also be 
supported by the offer of direct interviews with each member of the Board. 

c) A workshop will be held on 18 November 2019 to enlist views from local 
stakeholder group leads and the public. Sign up for this event will be 
coordinated through the online survey on a first come first served basis. 
Requests to participate in the workshop can also be received by contacting 
Oxfordshire.growthboard@southandvale.gov.uk.  

d) A workshop will be held on 4 November 2019 to enlist views from district 
and county councillors within Oxfordshire. Requests to participate can be 
submitted through the online survey or through direct requests to 
Oxfordshire.growthboard@southandvale.gov.uk

e) Interviews will be offered to the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Growth Board 
Scrutiny Panel, Growth Board Executive Officers (the senior responsible 
officers from each local authority) and existing staff supporting the Board. 
The Scrutiny Panel may wish to agree a formal response to the review as a 
collective at their meeting on 21 November 2019. 

f) A desktop review of similar governance structures that exist elsewhere in 
the UK (e.g. Combined Authorities / Joint Committees / Other Growth 
Deals) will be undertaken to reflect on governance and engagement 
practices elsewhere. 

Review Analysis 

19. The review will conclude with a report to the Board on 28 January 2020, which 
may also be reviewed by the Scrutiny Panel on 23 January 2020. The report will 
provide a thematic analysis of the responses given to the review and will be 
supported by recommendations and options for making changes and 
improvements to the Board’s ways of working. 

Role of the Scrutiny Panel

20. The Board’s Terms of Reference stipulate the establishment of a Scrutiny Panel 
to review decisions and make recommendations to the Board. This review will 
gather feedback on the role and function of the Scrutiny Panel and present 
findings. However, it is considered a matter for the Scrutiny Panel to decide how 
it wishes to exercise its functions within the resources available and within the 
role set out in the Board’s Terms of Reference. Officers will work with the Chair 
and Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny Panel to develop reports and recommendations 
for the Panel to consider as appropriate.

Improvements already underway 

21. Whilst some of the more fundamental issues around the Board’s role and 
ambitions require wider engagement and analysis, there are some 
improvements that are already underway where there is a clear consensus on 
the issues. These are summarised below:

Page 15



 The report approval process is under review, with officers considering how to 
streamline the process and improve the frequency of reports being made 
available on time for meetings held in public. 

 The Board has indicated that it would be preferable to reduce the frequency 
and length of presentations at its meetings given the limited time available. 
Reports in advance of the meeting should be expected as standard. If 
presentations are considered necessary, they should be limited to ten 
minutes. 

 A forward plan of meetings will be published with each Growth Board agenda 
and separately on the Growth Board’s webpage. This document will set out 
what items will be considered at which meetings and will list issues as far in 
advance as possible. This will in turn support the Scrutiny Panel in developing 
their own work plan. 

 A new stakeholder mapping exercise is underway for the Board, Growth Deal 
and its workstreams, and this will take account of any new ways of operating 
following the conclusion of the Board’s review. 

 A role profile is being developed for the host authority to set clearer guidelines 
as to their remit in supporting the Board. 

Timeline

22. The timeline for the review process is set out below:

Scrutiny Panel meeting 19 September 2019
Growth Board meeting and formal start of the review 24 September 2019
Workshop with Councillors 4 November 2019
Workshop with Local Stakeholder Groups 18 November 2019
Closure of the review 6 December 2019
Concluding report and recommendations published 17 January 2020
Scrutiny Panel considers final report 23 January 2020
Growth Board considers final report 28 January 2020

Financial Implications

23. There are no financial implications arising from this report and the review will be 
carried out within existing resources. There may however be financial 
implications arising from the recommendations made as a result of the review, 
which will be detailed in the concluding report to the Board on 28 January 2020.

Legal Implications 

24. There are no legal implications arising from this report. This is a non-statutory 
review, however there may be governance implications arising from the 

Page 16



recommendations made as a result of the review, which will be detailed in the 
concluding report to the Board on 28 January 2020.

Conclusion

25. This report sets out a high-level approach and scope for undertaking a review of 
the Board’s role and working arrangements. The Board is asked to approve the 
scope and approach to the review as set out in the report. 

Background papers

26. Oxfordshire Growth Board Terms of Reference 26 April 2018. 

Report Author: Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director

Contact information: Oxfordshire.growthboard@southandvale.gov.uk 

Page 17

mailto:Oxfordshire.growthboard@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1: Key questions and themes for the review

Role and function
1. What should be the Growth Board’s strategy, purpose and objectives? Is an 

alternative name required to better reflect its role?

2. Are the challenges to delivering on the Board’s current objectives well 
understood and is an appropriate plan to meet those challenges in place?

3. Is there suitable communication infrastructure in place to ensure that partner 
councils, stakeholders and the public remain informed, and where 
appropriate, involved in the Growth Board’s work? 

Capability and Resources
4. Does the Growth Board and its governance arrangements have the 

appropriate officer resources and skills, now and into the future, to carry out 
its role and meet its objectives? 

5. Is the membership, (both voting and non-voting) of the Growth Board 
appropriate for its role and purpose? Does the Growth Board’s membership 
receive appropriate support to be effective in its role? 

6. To what extent is it appropriate that the Growth Board’s support is dependent 
on informal or temporary staffing arrangements, and what mitigation 
measures should be put in place to maintain continuity?

Process and structures
7. Does the current governance structure in its entirety support the effective 

functioning and management of the Growth Board’s work? 

8. Is there clear milestones and performance monitoring information to support 
the effective management and scrutiny of the Growth Board’s work?

9. Does the Growth Board conduct its business with the right level of 
transparency and engage with stakeholders and the public meaningfully in the 
right way at the right time? 

10. Is there sufficient transparency and clarity as to what decisions are needed 
and where decisions are taken so that the role of the Growth Board as a 
‘decision maker’ (as opposed to the role of the constituent individual 
Authorities) is properly understood and functioning as it should?  

Page 18



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 1 

 

Joint Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
  
Report of Head of Partnership and Insight 
Author: Marybeth Harasz 
Telephone: 01235 422473 

Textphone:  
E-mail: marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: All wards within the Didcot Garden Town “Area of Influence” 
Cholsey, Didcot North East, Didcot South, Didcot West, Sandford and the 
Wittenhams wards in South Oxfordshire district. 
Blewbury and Harwell, Drayton, Hendreds, Steventon and the Hanneys, 
Sutton Courtenay, wards in the Vale of White Horse district. 

AGENDA ITEM or 
REPORT NO 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Judy Roberts 
Tel: 01865 864041 

E-mail: judy.roberts@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
To: CABINET 
DATE: 31 January 2020 

Executive member responsible: Cllr Sue Cooper 
Tel: 01491 835631 

E-mail: Sue.Cooper@southandvale.gov.uk 
To: CABINET 
DATE: 30 January 2020 

 

Didcot Garden Town 

Recommendation 

That the Joint Scrutiny Committee considers governance arrangements and project 
priorities for Didcot Garden Town before further Cabinet Member Decision for both 
Cabinets. Recommendations to Cabinets are as follows: 
 

(a) Approve operating guidelines, terms of reference and revised governance for 
the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board and sounding boards as shown in 
Appendix 2. 

(b) Agree to name the nominated Didcot Garden Town Board as “Didcot Garden 
Town Advisory Board”. 

(c) Agree the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan project priorities. 

(d) Delegate authority to apply for future funding opportunities that directly align 
with the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan as appropriate. 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 2 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To ask the Joint Scrutiny Committee to consider and comment on project delivery 
recommendations for Didcot Garden Town including an updated governance 
structure and priorities for project delivery. 

2. To provide information about recommendations made by the Vale Cabinet and 
Sutton Courtenay Parish Council on 12 July 2019. 

3. To update the committee on recent community engagement activity and a potential 
time line for Didcot Garden Town work streams. 

Strategic Objectives  

4. South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils approved the Didcot 
Garden Town Delivery Plan on 5 and 6 October 2017. The vision for the plan is: 
“Oxfordshire’s gateway to future science, applied technology and vibrant 
communities”. Sustainability lies at the heart of this vision with strategies that 
include fantastic green space, connected and cultural communities and visionary 
science and advanced technologies. 

Background 

5. South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse district councils approved various 
actions related to Didcot Garden Town on 5 and 6 October 2017. One of the 
actions was to approve the Delivery Plan and its vision for sustainable growth to 
deliver 15,000 homes and 20,000 jobs by 2031. The Delivery Plan lists over 60 
projects that will contribute to implementation of the strategic plan and provides 
high-level estimates of their cost. 

6. The vision statement of the Delivery Plan is: “Oxfordshire’s gateway to future 
science, applied technology and vibrant communities”. This vision acknowledges 
the importance of Science Vale, home to a high concentration of enterprise and 
innovation in the advanced engineering and manufacturing, energy, life sciences 
and space sectors. The emerging Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy leverages 
the Science Vale and Didcot Garden Town to promote innovation and economic 
prosperity in the region in partnership with South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White 
Horse. 

7. To achieve the Didcot Garden Town vision, a project delivery team is working to 
implement key concepts put forward in the Delivery Plan. These include connected 
green space, cultural communities, inspired green living and a network of public 
transportation, cycling and walking links to key employers at Culham Science 
Centre, Harwell Campus and Milton Park.  

8. Project delivery staff includes the following full-time positions: Didcot Garden Town 
(DGT) Project Manager, Project Officer and Oxfordshire County Council Principal 
Transportation Planner. In addition, part time positions include: Sr. 
Communications Officer, Administrative Officer and Public Art Officer. Additional 
needs are for urban design, events and graphics support.  

9. In October 2017, cabinet approved forming a Didcot Garden Town Board (“Board”) 
to guide implementation of the Delivery Plan. As part of the approval, it was 

Page 20



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 3 

 

envisioned that working sub-groups would report to the Board. It was agreed that 
sub-groups would be governed by a set of operating guidelines similar to a model 
set out in appendix 2 of the October 2017 cabinet papers.  

10. Since the October 2017 approval, a nominated Board has met to further discuss 
governance. The nominated Board recommended a simplified version of operating 
guidelines that more closely reflects their advisory role and typical of other garden 
communities. For example, Bicester Garden Town and the North Essex garden 
settlements have extremely simple, somewhat informal governance structures. 
Appendix 1 shows the previously approved governance structure. 

11. The nominated Board suggested that “sounding boards” replace sub-groups. At 
least three sounding boards are proposed: residents, parish councils and business. 
The purpose of the sounding boards is to provide comments, insight and advice 
about ongoing work to implement the Delivery Plan. Didcot Garden Town project 
delivery staff would facilitate at least two sounding board meetings per year and 
report meeting content to the Board. 

12. In addition to operating guidelines, the revised name: ‘Didcot Garden Town 
Advisory Board’ (DGTAB) has been proposed by the nominated Board as being 
more reflective of their role.  

13. The Vale of White Horse District Council Cabinet (“Cabinet”) considered approval 
of the governance model recommended by the nominated Board on 12 July 2019. 
The Cabinet expressed concern at the lack of community engagement on new 
governance proposals. Cabinet deferred consideration of the actions to allow the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee to consider them and comment back to Cabinet.  

14. A representative of Sutton Courtenay Parish Council gave public comment at the 
12 July 2019 Cabinet meeting stating that they were fully supportive of the project. 
Sutton Courtenay recommended an amendment to the governance model to 
include a representative from Sutton Courtenay Parish Council on the new 
DGTAB.  

15. Sutton Courtenay Parish Council first wrote to the Didcot Garden Town staff with 
the request for a seat on the DGTAB in January 2019. The nominated Board 
considered the letter and staff responded that the best way for Parish Councils to 
participate is through the Sounding Boards. Correspondence was received from 
Sutton Courtenay on 20 March 2019 with the same request for a seat on the 
Advisory Board. On 12 September 2019 Sutton Courtenay Parish Council wrote to 
ask that their statement to Cabinet be included in the report to the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee. 

16. A total of five parish councils are located partially within the Didcot Garden Town 
boundary. They are: Appleford-on-Thames, East Hagbourne, Harwell, Milton and 
Sutton Courtenay. Didcot is located entirely within the DGT boundary. The public 
statement by Sutton Courtenay and a map of all parish councils located within the 
DGT boundary are shown in Appendix 2.    

17. One additional seat has been added to the proposed DGTAB structure in 
consideration of the request to provide a seat to enhance parish council 
participation. A revised set of operations guidelines and terms of reference have 
been updated accordingly. The representative would be elected by the Parish 

Page 21



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 4 

 

Council Sounding Board annually. The parish council representative on the 
DGTAB would not consider Didcot Town Council as a candidate for this seat 
because Didcot Town Council already has a seat on the Board. Updated terms of 
reference proposed for the DGTAB and the sounding boards are shown in 
Appendix 2. 

18. On 5 December 2019 all 18 town and parish councils were notified that Didcot 
Garden Town matters would be discussed at the 16 January 2020 Joint Scrutiny 
Committee meeting. 

19. On 12 July, the Vale Cabinet requested additional community engagement that 
would include outreach to a wide variety of people, businesses and local parish 
councils. Ongoing and inclusive community engagement is a key strategy put 
forward by the DGT delivery plan. Staff will prepare a community engagement plan 
following approval of governance. The plan will consider the sounding boards for 
residents, parish councils and businesses as an ongoing engagement strategy 
along with other avenues for reaching more vulnerable populations.  

20. From August 2019, a community survey was offered as part of a process to sign 
up to receive information about Didcot Garden Town. Survey results show that 
roads, transport, cycling and walking, open space, community space and housing 
are the top six priorities of the 261 respondents. Community engagement activities 
since the Vale Cabinet meeting are shown in Appendix 4. 

21. The Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan recommends 64 projects for 
implementation, with six projects completed to date. Completed projects include 
preparation of the Delivery Plan, public consultation, re-construction of the Backhill 
Lane pedestrian tunnel to Milton Park, Orchard Centre Phase 2, public art projects, 
a district heating feasibility study and various administrative actions.  

22. The 64 projects defined in the delivery plan are segregated into near, medium and 
long- term projects. Nine early priority projects include both town-wide and place-
based strategies. Town-wide strategies include a cycling network, a public spaces 
and culture strategy, conference festival and wayfinding to help people find key 
destinations. Site-specific early priority projects are: gateway spine, cultural spine, 
community hub, connectivity hub, and the garden line.  

23. Projects may move forward for delivery as there are opportunities for funding, 
project partners, development activity and other strategic factors. Staff considers 
which projects best meet the criteria for funding applications when applying for 
grants. Therefore, project priorities are sometimes influenced by a range of factors.  

24. The nominated Board has agreed project priorities with emphasis on finalising the 
governance structure, transportation projects, a parking strategy, development of 
the Gateway project and near term and meanwhile projects. The nominated Board 
specifically requested that priority be given to a community engagement event 
which could be used to “launch” the sounding boards once governance is 
approved.  

25. In August 2019 staff responded to an invitation to bid for 2019-20 Homes England 
garden communities funding with a request of up to £959,500. The bid included the 
following project priorities: studies related to public transport and the cycling 

Page 22



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 5 

 

network, housing delivery including elderly housing, innovative construction 
methods, capacity studies and third-party delivery tools.   

26. The Cabinet papers for 12 July 2019 included various financial recommendations, 
which are not being made in this paper. Finance actions for Didcot Garden Town 
will be included in a future recommendation for South and Vale Council approval 
following notice from Homes England as to the outcome of the funding request for 
Didcot Garden Town. 

27. A proposed timeline for approval of DGT recommendations is shown in Appendix 
5. 

Financial Implications 

28. There are no financial implications for this report. Didcot Garden Town is funded 
with grant revenue received from government including the Department of 
Communities and Local Government (now the Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Governments) and Homes England. The funding cannot be used for any 
other purpose. 

Legal Implications 

29. The governance model approved along with the delivery plan in October 2017 is 
considered unviable. The model must either be replaced with a viable model or a 
decision should be taken that a governance model is not needed to oversee the 
implementation of Didcot Garden Town. 

30. The nominated Board is considered temporary until approved by the Cabinets of 
South and Vale.  

31. The DGTAB and sounding boards need approved operating guidelines and terms 
of reference to meet over the long term. 

32. The DGTAB will serve in an advisory role with no legal status. Each member may 
make recommendations to their representative organisation to take action on a 
matter that is under the jurisdiction of that organisation.  

33. Any changes to the legal status of the DGTAB will need to be agreed by all key 
stakeholders and their representative organisations. 

34. The sounding boards will provide a forum for residents, parish councils and 
businesses with an interest in Didcot Garden Town. Sounding board participants 
may submit comments, provide insight and advise the project delivery staff. The 
sounding boards will be organised and facilitated by the project delivery staff.  

35. Terms of reference have been reviewed by the legal team and advice has been 
incorporated into the final documents. 

Risks 

36. The nominated Board meetings are not currently open to the public which may 
cause a public perception of lack of transparency. Approving a governance model 

Page 23



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 6 

 

to replace the unviable model set forth in the delivery plan would increase the flow 
of public information. 

37. Homes England awarded Didcot Garden Town revenue funding grants in past 
years to support the programme and a portion of the money has not been brought 
forward into the budget for expenditure. Homes England may not award additional 
grant funding without clear progress in spending past grant funds.  

38. Didcot Garden Town operates using external revenue funding, largely from Homes 
England. Funding has been awarded based on project priorities put forward by 
DGT staff at the time of the grant bid. If project priorities shift without clear rationale 
Didcot Garden Town may suffer a reputational loss with Homes England.  

39. There is a risk that community engagement on governance and project priorities 
will be overshadowed by community concerns related to South Oxfordshire’s Local 
Plan and the status of the £218m award from the Housing Infrastructure Fund. 
Ongoing community engagement through the sounding boards will allow for open 
discussion of a variety of topics as a matter of routine and replace one-time public 
consultations as a method of engagement.  

40. Capacity funding available to support Didcot Garden Town governance 
administration and project work is limited. Additional revenue will be needed within 
approximately two years to continue work to advance these activities. It is 
recommended that cabinet approve delegated authority to apply for funding to 
support the Delivery Plan to the chief executive, in consultation with lead cabinet 
members as funding opportunities arise. This will mitigate the risk of a funding 
shortfall by giving the councils the autonomy to make decisions to pursue new 
funding opportunities that align with garden town principles in a flexible and 
responsive way. 

Other Implications 

41. The nominated Board is an advisory board made up of agency partners with 
oversight of projects and budgets that contribute to Didcot Garden Town’s 
development. They include Homes England, Oxfordshire County Council, the 
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership and Didcot Town Council. Following the 
2019 elections in South and Vale, the nominated Board has been reviewed to 
confirm it is a good working model. 

42. Sutton Courtenay Parish Council has requested a seat on the DGTAB because 
they are partially located inside the boundary for Didcot Garden Town. Five parish 
councils are located partially within the boundary. If a seat is offered to Sutton 
Courtenay, it follows that a seat should also be offered to Appleford, East 
Hagbourne, Harwell and Milton to be consistent with decision making. Didcot Town 
Council is located entirely within the Didcot Garden Town boundary and has a seat 
on the nominated DGTAB. 

43. The proposed structure of the DGTAB has been updated to add one seat for a 
parish council representative who is elected by the Parish Council Sounding 
Board. The representative would be selected from the 17 parish councils that are 
located within either the Didcot Garden Town or Area of Influence boundaries. 

Page 24



\\SAVVPSPFIL03\Services\Partnership and Insight\PROJECTS\Didcot Garden Town\04_Committee Documents\Scrutiny\2020\16 
Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.doc 7 

 

Conclusion 

44. The simplified governance structure and project priorities are considered the best 
way to support the delivery of projects for Didcot Garden Town. The proposals 
reflect that housing and infrastructure projects are being largely implemented by 
outside partners and private land developers rather than by a Didcot Garden Town 
development corporation as originally envisioned. 

45. Didcot Garden Town is a long-term strategy. A flexible approach will ensure 
success over time. Some ideas in the delivery plan may not be workable as 
envisioned, such as the governance model. Recommended actions in the Cabinet 
papers are intended to progress near term and early priority projects such as 
governance, community engagement, meanwhile uses and social infrastructure. 
Recommendations consider the current context and can be updated as the 
situation changes.   

Background Papers 

• Vale Cabinet paper and minutes 12 July 2019: 
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=2654
&Ver=4 

• Appendix 1 - Original and new governance structures compared   
• Appendix 2 - Proposed operations guidelines and terms of reference for Didcot 

Garden Town Advisory Board and sounding boards 
• Appendix 3 – Statement by Sutton Courtenay Parish Council read at 12 July 2019 

Vale cabinet meeting  
• Appendix 4 – Community Engagement Summary 
• Appendix 5 – Proposed timeline for approvals 
 

Page 25

http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=2654&Ver=4
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=2654&Ver=4
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=2654&Ver=4
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=2654&Ver=4


December 2019 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
ORIGINAL AND NEW GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES COMPARED 

FIGURE 1: ORIGINAL (APPROVED) GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE  
FIGURES 2 AND 3: REVISED (PROPOSED) GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 26



December 2019 
 

 
Figure 1. Original (approved) governance structure 
 
The governance structure for Didcot Garden Town shown below was published in 
Chapter 10 of the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan and approved by South and 
Vale Cabinets in October 2017. Figures 2 and 3 on the following page show the 
revised governance structure that was agreed by the nominated Didcot Garden 
Town Board on 11 March 2019.  
 

 
 
  

Page 27



December 2019 
 

 
Figures 2 and 3. Revised (proposed) governance structure 
 
The proposed governance structure has been updated since 12 July 2019 to include 
a parish council representative. The structure is reflects the advisory role of the 
Board and is recommended for approval. 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 28



December 2019 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 
PROPOSED OPERATIONS GUIDELINES AND TERMS OF 
REFERENCE FOR DIDCOT GARDEN TOWN ADVISORY BOARD 
AND SOUNDING BOARDS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 29



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
 
 

 
December 2019 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
1. OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVES  

1.1. The objective of the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board (“Board”) will be to make 
recommendations about development of Didcot Garden Town to the organisations 
each member represents. 

1.2. The Board will have an advisory role. Board members will liaise with their 
representative organisations (Oxfordshire County Council, South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White Horse District Councils, Didcot Town Council, Homes England and 
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership or parish council). Board members shall 
act in accordance with their representative organisations when providing advice to 
the Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 

1.3. Any ratification of specific actions recommended by the Board will need to follow the 
process for approval set out in the constitution of the appropriate representative 
organisation that oversees the budget, funding or work plan governing that action. 
 

2. BOARD STRUCTURE 
2.1. The Board will be made up of representatives from: Didcot Town Council, Homes 

England, Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, the 
Representative of the Parish Councils Sounding Board and South Oxfordshire 
and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 

2.2. Three Sounding Boards will be made up of members of each of these groups: 
residents, parish councils and business. The Sounding Boards will meet at least 
twice a year with South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Council’s Didcot 
Garden Town project delivery staff to discuss project updates and comment on 
issues and agenda items of interest. Sounding Boards will follow terms of reference 
incorporated herein. 

2.3. Staff from South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils will provide 
logistical support for meetings. 

2.4. Staff from Didcot Town Council, Homes England, Oxfordshire County Council, 
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, the Representative of the Parish 
Councils Sounding Board and South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Councils may attend meetings to provide information, updates and 
recommendations as appropriate. 

2.5. Members of the public may attend the portion of a Board meeting during which the 
public agenda is considered by the Board. The public will be required to leave when 
a matter of confidential or commercially sensitive nature is considered or discussed 
by the Board. Members of the public may address the Board at the beginning of the 
public portion of a Board meeting on matters that are on the public agenda or on a 
general matter related to Didcot Garden Town. 

2.6. The diagram in Figure 1 shows the relationship between the Board, their 
representative organisations, the sounding boards and the Didcot Garden Town 
project delivery staff. 

 
3. DURATION OF BOARD 

3.1. The Board is expected to continue for the duration of the delivery of the Didcot 
Garden Town Plan, until the completion date of the final development project. 

Page 30



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
 
 

 
December 2019 

 

3.2. Notwithstanding paragraph 3, the Board may be voluntarily wound up, provided: 
3.2.1. there is a majority vote of its existing Members; and 
3.2.2. at least 50% of the original Representative Organisations have ceased to re-

nominate a representative to the Board or to participate in the activities of the 
Board. 

 
4. MEMBERSHIP 

4.1. The following organisations will be represented on the Board and one designated 
representative from each organisation will have a vote: 

4.1.1. Didcot Town Council. 
4.1.2. Oxfordshire County Council.  
4.1.3. Leader of the Council for South Oxfordshire District Council and one other 

designee. 
4.1.4. Leader of the Council for Vale of White Horse District Council and one other 

designee. 
4.1.5. Representative of the Parish Councils Sounding Board 

4.2. The following organisations will be represented on the Board by one representative 
each without a vote: 

4.2.1. Homes England. 
4.2.2. Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership. 

4.3. The following staff will attend meetings and support the Board: 
4.3.1. One or more lead staff members from Didcot Town Council, Homes England, 

Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership and 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 

4.3.2. Support staff including a senior communications officer and the Didcot Garden 
Town Project Manager from South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Councils will advise the Board. 

4.3.3. An administrative officer from South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse 
District Councils will perform the following secretarial duties as a minimum: 

4.3.3.1. Circulate relevant board papers in advance of Board meetings and 
provide details of time, date and location of meetings to Members; 

4.3.3.2. Prepare minutes of Board meetings and making a note of agreed 
actions. Circulate the same following meetings. 

4.4. Members will be appointed for the duration of their tenure in their relevant role with 
their organisations. 

4.5. Representative organisations will name any proposed replacement member in the 
event that a member resigns or is removed by the Board.  

4.6. The Chair of the Board will be the member that represents the Oxfordshire County 
Council. 

4.7. The Vice-Chair will rotate on an annual basis between a representative from South 
Oxfordshire District Council and a representative from Vale of White Horse District 
Council. 

4.8. Membership may be modified by the Board as needed with the approval of voting 
members.  

Page 31



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
 
 

 
December 2019 

 

4.9. Voting members will consult with their representative organisations prior to voting on 
a specific action and cast their vote according to a decision that follows the 
constitutional process of their representative organisation. 

 
5. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 

5.1. Meetings will be held at least quarterly or at a frequency determined by the Board. 
5.2. Meetings will take place at District Council offices or a location in or near Didcot 

Town centre unless decided otherwise by the Board.   
5.3. A recommendation-making quorum will be considered as attendance by at least 

four Board members, each of whom will be from each of the four governmental 
agencies: Didcot Town Council, Oxfordshire County Council, South Oxfordshire 
District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council. 

5.4. Agenda and supporting materials will be distributed five calendar days prior to the 
meeting date. 

5.5. Meeting minutes will be prepared following each meeting and distributed for review 
and approval with the agenda for the next regular business meeting. 

 
6. FUNDING AND EXPENSES 

6.1. The Board secretary and other support staff will be provided by South Oxfordshire 
and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 

6.2. Any expenses, funding or budgets used by Board members will be approved by their 
own organisations. 

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 

7.1. An experienced Communications Officer from South and Vale will be available to 
support the Board. 

7.2. The Didcot Garden Town shall have a website set up as part of the South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Council website framework. The Project 
Delivery Staff will ensure that the website is kept updated so members of the public 
are kept informed of progress relating to the implementation of the Delivery Plan. 

7.3. The Project Delivery Staff will post meeting minutes and relevant reports to the 
website when they are to be made available to the public. 

 
8. TRANSPARENCY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROTECTION OF PERSONAL DATA 

8.1. Commercially sensitive information will be discussed when members of the public 
are not present. 

8.2. Personal information associated with Board activity is subject to the Data Protection 
Act 2018.  

8.3. Data will be stored with South Oxfordshire District Council and the privacy policy will 
be that of South Oxfordshire District Council.  

8.4. The privacy policy can be found on their website and may be amended from time to 
time. 

  

Page 32



Didcot Garden Town 
Operational Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Board   
FIGURE 1 
 

 

 

P
age 33



Didcot Garden Town 
Operational Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Board   
FIGURE 1 
 

 

P
age 34



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Residents Sounding Board 
 

 
 

  
December 2019 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR RESIDENTS SOUNDING BOARD 
 
1. OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVES  

1.1. The objective of the Residents Sounding Board will be to review project 
updates and provide comments about the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan 
to the Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 

1.2. The Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff will compile comments and 
provide them to the Board at their next regular meeting. 
 

2. DURATION OF BOARD 
2.1. The terms of reference for the Sounding Board will be reviewed by the Board 

biannually following approval and updated as needed. 
2.2. The Sounding Board is expected to continue for as long as the Board 

operates. 
 

3. BOARD STRUCTURE 
3.1. The Sounding Board will be managed by the Didcot Garden Town project 

delivery staff for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
3.2. The Sounding Board will be made up of representatives of resident 

associations and community-based organisations (“Organisations”) whose 
operating address is located within Didcot Garden Town. 

3.2.1. A public call for interested Organisations will be made to seek 
representatives to form the initial Sounding Board and annually 
thereafter. 

3.2.2. Any Organisation may contact the Didcot Garden Town project delivery 
staff at any time to request that a representative join the Sounding Board.  

3.2.3. Representatives will be designated as the single point of contact for 
their Organisations and serve for a time period determined by their 
Organisations.  

3.2.4. Organisations must notify the Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff  
of any changes to their designated representative or to their contact 
details by email to: info@didcotgardentown.co.uk at least 10 days prior to 
the next Sounding Board meeting. 

3.2.5. There will be no maximum number of Organisations represented on the 
Sounding Board. 

3.3. Individual residents may attend meetings as a member of the public. 
Members of the public may address the Sounding Board at the beginning of 
the meeting on matters that are on the agenda or on a general matter related 
to Didcot Garden Town.  

3.4. Meetings will be facilitated by the Didcot Garden Town Project Manager and 
supported by Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 

 

 

Page 35

mailto:didcotgardentown@southandvale.gov.uk


Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Residents Sounding Board 
 
 

 
 

  
July 2019 

4. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
4.1. The terms of reference for the Sounding Board will be reviewed by the Board 

biannually following approval and updated as needed. 
4.2. The Sounding Board will meet at least twice a year to provide input to the 

Didcot Garden Town Project delivery staff. All input will be compiled and 
provided to the Board at its next regular meeting. 

4.3. Meetings will be up to 90 minutes in duration. 
4.4. Sounding Board members will be invited to one open public forum annually. 
4.5. Meetings will take place at District Council offices or a location in or near 

Didcot Town centre.   
4.6. Sounding Board meetings will be held if at least five people, including 

Organisations and members of the public are in attendance. 
 

5. FUNDING AND EXPENSE 
5.1. Meeting agendas, notices, room rental and support staff will be provided by 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
5.2. Any travel costs or other expenses generated by Sounding Board members 

will be paid by their own Organisations and not by South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White District Councils. 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
6.1. Any Organisation represented on the Sounding Board must have an email 

address. Notifications, agendas, minutes and other materials will be provided 
electronically only. 

6.2. The Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff will post meeting agendas, 
presentation materials and reports to the website as appropriate.  

6.3. Formal minutes will not be kept, but comments will be summarised for 
presentation to the Board. 

6.4. An agenda will be provided before the meeting and other documents may be 
distributed electronically in advance of the meeting as needed. 

6.5. Sounding Board participants may not speak on behalf of Didcot Garden 
Town. 
 

7. TRANSPARENCY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROTECTION OF PERSONAL 
DATA 
7.1. Personal information associated with Board activity is subject to the Data 

Protection Act 2018.  
7.2. Data will be stored with South Oxfordshire District Council and the privacy 

policy will be that of South Oxfordshire District Council.  
7.3. The privacy policy can be found on their website and may be amended from 

time to time.

Page 36



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Parish Councils Sounding Board 
 

 
 

  
December 2019 

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR PARISH COUNCILS SOUNDING BOARD  

1. OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVES  
1.1. The objective of the Parish Councils Sounding Board (“Sounding Board”) will 

be to review project updates and provide comments about the Didcot Garden 
Town Delivery Plan to the Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 

1.2. The Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff will compile comments and 
provide them to the Board. 
 

2. DURATION OF BOARD 
2.1. The terms of reference for the Sounding Board will be reviewed by the Board 

biannually following approval and updated as needed. 
2.2. The Sounding Board is expected to continue for as long as the Board 

operates. 
 

3. BOARD STRUCTURE 
3.1. The Sounding Board will be managed by the Didcot Garden Town project 

delivery staff for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
3.2. The Sounding Board will be made up of representatives of the parish and 

town councils located within the Didcot Garden Town area of influence which 
is shown in the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan. 

3.2.1. Clifton Hampden, Culham, Didcot, East Hagbourne, North Moreton, 
Little Wittenham (parish meeting), Long Wittenham, South Moreton and 
West Hagbourne in South Oxfordshire District Council. 

3.2.2. Appleford-on-Thames, Blewbury, Chilton, East Hendred, Harwell, 
Milton, Steventon, Sutton Courtenay, and Upton in Vale of White Horse 
District Council. 

3.2.3. The parish clerk will be designated as the single point of contact for 
each parish council. 

3.2.4. Each parish council will appoint the parish clerk or one councillor to 
represent them as a member of the Sounding Board for a duration 
agreed by the parish council.  

3.2.5. Parish councils must notify the Didcot Garden Town project delivery 
staff  of any changes to their designated representative or to their contact 
details by email to: info@didcotgardentown.co.uk at least 10 days prior to 
the next Sounding Board meeting. 

3.3. The Parish Councils Sounding Board meetings will not be open to the public. 
3.4. Meetings will be facilitated by the Didcot Garden Town Project Manager and 

supported by Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 
3.5. The Didcot Garden Town Project Manager and project delivery staff will 

attend the Sounding Board, make presentations and support the Sounding 
Board as appropriate. 
 
 
 

Page 37

mailto:didcotgardentown@southandvale.gov.uk


Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Parish Councils Sounding Board 
 

 
 

  
December 2019 

4. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
4.1. The terms of reference for the Sounding Board will be reviewed by the Board 

biannually following approval and updated as needed. 
4.2. The Sounding Board will meet at least twice a year to provide input to the 

Didcot Garden Town Project delivery staff. All input will be compiled and 
provided to the Board at its next regular meeting. 

4.3. Meetings will be up to 90 minutes in duration. 
4.4. Sounding Board members will be invited to one open public forum annually. 
4.5. Meetings will take place at District Council offices or a location in or near 

Didcot Town centre.   
4.6. Sounding Board meetings will be held if at least three Parish Council 

representatives have confirmed attendance within 24 hours of the meeting 
date. 

4.7. The Sounding Board will elect one member annually to serve as the 
designated Representative of the Parish Councils Sounding Board 
(“Representative”) on the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board 
(“DGTAB”). 

4.7.1. The Sounding Board will elect one member annually to substitute 
for the designated Representative on the DGTAB. 

4.7.2. The representative and substitute representative of the Parish 
Councils Sounding Board will follow the Terms of Reference for the 
DGTAB as a member of that board.   

4.8. The Sounding Board may elect to provide advice and recommendations to 
the Board by providing written statements, recommendations or advice 
(“Advice”) to the Didcot Garden Town Project Manager. The Project Manager 
will forward the Advice to the Board at their next regular meeting. 
 

5. FUNDING AND EXPENSE 
5.1. Meeting agendas, notices, room rental and support staff will be provided by 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
5.2. Any travel costs or other expenses generated by Sounding Board members 

will be paid by their own Organisations and not by South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White District Councils. 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
6.1. Any parish council represented on the Sounding Board must provide up to 

two email addresses which will be the primary method of communication with 
the Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff.  

6.2. Notifications, agendas, minutes and other materials will be provided 
electronically only. 

6.3. The Didcot Garden Town Project delivery staff will post meeting agendas, 
presentation materials and reports to the Didcot Garden Town website as 
appropriate.  

6.4. Formal minutes will not be kept, but comments will be summarised for 
presentation to the Board. 

Page 38



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Parish Councils Sounding Board 
 

 
 

  
December 2019 

6.5. An agenda will be provided before the meeting and other documents may be 
distributed electronically in advance of the meeting as needed. 

6.6. Sounding Board participants may not speak on behalf of Didcot Garden 
Town. 
 

7. TRANSPARENCY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROTECTION OF PERSONAL 
DATA 
7.1. Personal information associated with Board activity is subject to the Data 

Protection Act 2018.  
7.2. Data will be stored with South Oxfordshire District Council and the privacy 

policy will be that of South Oxfordshire District Council.  
7.3. The privacy policy can be found on their website and may be amended from 

time to time.

Page 39



Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Business Sounding Board 
 

 
 

  
July 2019 

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR BUSINESS SOUNDING BOARD  

1. OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVES  
1.1. The objective of the Business Sounding Board (“Sounding Board”) will be to 

review project updates and provide comments about the Didcot Garden Town 
Delivery Plan to the Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 

1.2. The Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff will compile comments and 
provide them to the Board. 
 

2. DURATION OF BOARD 
2.1. The Sounding Board is expected to continue for as long as the Board 

operates. 
 

3. BOARD STRUCTURE 
3.1. The Sounding Board will be managed by the Delivery Team for South 

Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
3.2. The Sounding Board will be made up of representatives of businesses 

located within the Didcot Garden Town area of influence, which is shown in 
the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan. 

3.2.1. Each business should provide a single point of contact. 
3.2.1.1. Businesses must notify the  Didcot Garden Town project 

delivery staff  of any changes to their designated representative or to 
their contact details by email to: info@didcotgardentown.co.uk at 
least 10 days prior to the next Sounding Board meeting. 

3.3. Business Sounding Board meetings will be open to the public. 
3.4. Meetings will be facilitated by the Didcot Garden Town Project Manager and 

supported by Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff. 
 

4. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
4.1. The terms of reference for the Sounding Board will be reviewed by the Board 

biannually following approval and updated as needed. 
4.2. The Sounding Board will meet at least twice a year to provide input to the 

Didcot Garden Town Project delivery staff. All input will be compiled and 
provided to the Board at its next regular meeting. 

4.3. Meetings will be up to 90 minutes in duration. 
4.4. Sounding Board members will be invited to one open public forum annually. 
4.5. Meetings will take place at District Council offices or a location in or near 

Didcot Town centre.   
4.6. Sounding Board meetings will be held if at least five business representatives 

have confirmed attendance within 24 hours of the meeting date. 
4.7. The Sounding Board may elect to provide advice and recommendations to 

the Board by providing written statements, recommendations or advice 
(“Advice”) to the Didcot Garden Town Project Manager. The Project Manager 
will forward the Advice to the Board at their next regular meeting. 
 

Page 40

mailto:info@didcotgardentown.co.uk


Didcot Garden Town 
Operating Guidelines for Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board  
Business Sounding Board 
 

 
 

  
July 2019 

5. FUNDING AND EXPENSE 
5.1. Meeting agendas, notices, room rental and support staff will be provided by 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
5.2. Any travel costs or other expenses generated by Sounding Board members 

will be paid by their own organisations and not by South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White District Councils. 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
6.1. Any business represented on the Sounding Board must provide an email 

addresses which will be the primary method of communication with the 
Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff.  

6.2. Notifications, agendas, minutes and other materials will be provided 
electronically only. 

6.3. The Didcot Garden Town project delivery staff will post meeting agendas, 
presentation materials and reports to the Didcot Garden Town website as 
appropriate.  

6.4. An agenda will be provided before the meeting and other documents may be 
distributed electronically in advance of the meeting as needed. 

6.5. Sounding Board participants may not speak on behalf of Didcot Garden 
Town. 
 

7. TRANSPARENCY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROTECTION OF PERSONAL 
DATA 
7.1. Personal information associated with Board activity is subject to the Data 

Protection Act 2018.  
7.2. Data will be stored with South Oxfordshire District Council and the privacy 

policy will be that of South Oxfordshire District Council.  
7.3. The privacy policy can be found on their website and may be amended from 

time to time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



December 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 

STATEMENT READ BY SUTTON COURTENAY PARISH COUNCIL 
AT 12 JULY 2019 VALE CABINET MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 42



1 

Appendix 3: Statement by Sutton Courtenay Parish Council read at 12 July 2019 

Vale cabinet meeting 

Madam Chair, councillors, thank you for giving me the opportunity to make a 

statement on behalf of Sutton Courtenay Parish Council.  The statement is in relation 

to agenda item 6 in which you will be considering officer recommendations on Didcot 

Garden Town governance.  

The Parish Council is fully supportive of the project.  It has the potential to be one of 

the most important influences in the way our area in the county develops.  So, why 

am I here?  

If you look at the Didcot Garden Town Masterplan you will note that approximately a 

third of Sutton Courtenay Parish is contained within this Masterplan.  I quote from 

Chapter 10.4 of the Didcot Garden Town delivery plan: ‘The Didcot Garden Town 

masterplan area is intended to cover the current and future extent of Didcot: the area 

where you might reasonably describe yourself as being ‘in Didcot’ if you lived or 

worked there.’  I repeat a third of our parish in within this garden town area which is 

being described as ‘reasonably living in Didcot’ – where is our identity? Now imagine 

you live next to a very important neighbor whom you love dearly, and you do 

appreciate all the benefits of living next to him. One day he says to you that he is 

going to incorporate a substantial section of your house and garden in his plans to 

deliver exciting opportunities for 21st century garden town living.  Hmm he says 

there is just one snag you will not be able to make any decisions about what is 

planned though we might find a way for you to feel you have had a say.  Imagine 

how you would feel and that is how Sutton Courtenay feels today. 

You are about to discuss some fresh proposals for Governance arrangements, 

despite there having been little public consultation on the new arrangements and the 

considerable concern Sutton Courtenay and its residents, as well as many other 

parishes, have been expressing for three years, over how the project is to be 

governed. 

It is noted that the non-executive Board is now to be an Advisory Board and that 

instead of having Parish Council and Community representatives on that Board, 

these have been relegated to Sounding Boards. This means that the views of those 

Page 43



2 

Appendix 3: Statement by Sutton Courtenay Parish Council read at 12 July 2019 

Vale cabinet meeting 

bodies will merely be reflected by officers to the main board, without necessarily the 

full implications and import being expressed. In this there is a clear need for the 

outlying communities to be able to argue their case where it matters – at the 

decision-making level.   

I cannot speak for other villages, but Sutton Courtenay is in a unique position, 

trapped between the river and Didcot and now with such a large area of its parish 

included in the Masterplan.  This comes hot on the heels of the Vale’s decision to 

exclude the Didcot Power station area, adjoining employment areas and Milton Park 

from our Neighbourhood Plan designated area despite our strong objections and the 

huge financial implications for the village. Please note on the eastern edge of our 

parish boundary, the DGT Masterplan and the NP designated areas have some 

overlap.  The new Sounding Boards (PCs, Businesses, etc) are due to meet only 

twice a year for 90 minutes at a time, yet there are planned projects to be delivered 

within or bordering our parish (Didcot A, Moor ditch, River Crossing, gravel workings 

site to name just a few) with woefully inadequate opportunities for us to influence 

project delivery. 

I would therefore ask that you seek an amendment so that the Advisory Board 

includes a representative from Sutton Courtenay. It is no use just relegating us to a 

Sounding Board, where any concerns will be muffled in general concerns. It is noted 

that Didcot Town Council is to be a voting member of the Board. It naturally has 

different interests to those of other local communities and it would be important that 

any representative from those communities is also accorded voting rights. 

In conclusion, we urge you strongly that you do not adopt the Terms of Reference for 

the DGT Advisory Board and Sounding Boards as recommended, but please 

consider our request for a full seat on the Advisory Board with voting rights.  A vote 

for Sutton Courtenay would balance the Board between the Va!e and SODC/Didcot 

TC.  

Page 44



3 

We do wish to be constructive in our request and request that if you are minded 

not to agree to that request, then an invitation to attend with voting rights for 

agenda items relating to discussions and decisions on plans for land within SC 

and the immediate vicinity where SC could be affected or even just an invitation 

to attend and contribute to the discussions. 

And in any case, we ask that when the relevant officers are developing strategies 

and plans for projects on land which fall within Sutton Courtenay and its 

immediate vicinity where Sutton Courtenay could be affected, full consultation 

with Sutton Courtenay Parish Council should take place.  

Finally, it is noticeable that OxLEP has a place on the Board as does Homes 

England. Both of these have considerable impact on the Growth Agenda you are 

now querying and do not necessarily represent the views of local communities 

and the requirement to protect the villages from undue and inferior quality 

development and the green spaces between them.  It is recommended that CPRE 

might also be asked to join the Board, as well as a Parish Council representative, 

to balance out the influence of those intent on driving the growth agenda. 

Thank you and please could I have a reassurance that our request will be 

considered and if not accepted the rationale is clearly documented for us to see. 

Rita Atkinson on behalf of Sutton Courtenay Parish Council 

12 July 2019 

Appendix 3: Statement by Sutton Courtenay Parish Council read at 12 July 2019 

Vale cabinet meeting 

Page 45



PARISH AND TOWN COUNCILS LOCATED INSIDE DIDCOT GARDEN TOWN BOUNDARY 

GARDEN TOWN BOUNDARY 

AREA OF INFLUENCE 

APPENDIX 3: Parish councils located partially inside DGT boundary

Page 46



December 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 4 
 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 47



 

Community Engagement Summary – Appendix 4 

Throughout 2019, the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Team have actively promoted 
community engagement through a variety of different platforms. The use of different 
methodologies has ensured inclusivity. This follows a two-year public engagement process in 
2016-17 during preparation of the delivery plan. 

The summary below demonstrates the Delivery Team’s engagement throughout 2019, 
before and after recommendations by the Vale of White Horse Cabinet on Friday 12 July. 
Note: The mission of each organisation is summarised at the end of this document. 

 Pre July 2019 Post July 2019 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Presentations 
and Meetings 

Didcot First 
Earth Trust 
Homes England 
Didcot Access 
Planning Department 
CPRE 
Director General of MHCLG 
Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board 
 

Harwell Space Cluster 
Baptist Church 
Planning Officers Society 
BOBMK – Urban Design Network 
Josh Fedder of MHCLG 
Didcot Town Council 
Oxfordshire Garden Communities Network 
Earth Trust 
SOFEA 
MEPC 
Culham Science Centre 
Harwell Campus  
Churches of GWP and All Saints 
MultiCAV 

Community 
Events 

 Didcot Summer Fayre 
HarBUG Cycle Day 

 
 

Online 
Activity 

Facebook Posts 
Twitter Posts 
Council Websites  

Sign Up Survey  
Facebook Posts 
Twitter Posts 
Council Websites 
DGT Campaign Website Page  

 
Marketing 
Materials 

 Sign Up Leaflet 
Programme Overview Package  
Large Display Unit 
Pop Up Display Units 

 

  

Page 48



 

Community Engagement Summary – Appendix 4 

 

‘Get involved with Didcot Garden Town’ Sign Up – Engagement Data  

Are you registering as a: 

Answer Choice Response Percent Response Total 

1 resident 88% 230 
2 business 5% 13 
3 town or parish council 6% 15 
4 community organisation 1% 3 
  Total 261 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

Community Engagement Summary – Appendix 4 

‘Get involved with Didcot Garden Town’ Sign Up – Engagement Data  

 

 

 

 

 

Please select the type of theme(s) you are interested in (tick all that apply) 

Answer Choice Response Percent Response Total 

Roads 80.9% 199 
Transport 80.5% 198 
Cycling and walking 79.7% 196 
Open Space 78.0% 192 
Community Space 74.8% 184 
Housing 72.4% 178 
Health and wellbeing 68.7% 169 
Public Space 68.3% 168 
Planning 63.8% 157 
Environmental sustainability 63.0% 155 
Culture 61.0% 150 
Health centres 61.0% 150 
Retail 60.6% 149 
Sustainability 56.9% 140 
Climate change 55.7% 137 
Design 54.1% 133 
Science Vale 51.2% 126 
Economy 50.0% 123 
Business 49.6% 122 
Innovation 49.6% 122 
Governance 41.5% 102 
Public Art 41.1% 101 
Commercial 40.2% 99 
Placemaking 37.4% 92 

Page 50



 

Community Engagement Summary – Appendix 4 

Social Media – Engagement Act 

This may appear to be very low in engagement, however, social media tends to have a low 
interaction rate.   

• Low rates are between 0-1 per cent  
• Good rates are 1 per cent and above 
• Total clicks to the link during the campaign were 252 
• Total signups for the newsletter as of now are 261 

Social media posts messages were: 

Monday 19 August 2019 – Boundary Map  
Live or work in the Didcot Garden Town or surrounding area?  Sign up on to keep up to date and 
get involved with the exciting projects planned for the town via 
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT 
 
Thursday 22 August 2019 – Great Western Park boundary pavilion 
If you’d like to hear first-hand about what’s happening in Didcot Garden Town, you can now sign up 
to our newsletter via https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT 
 
Tuesday 27 August 2019 – Broadway Baptist square  
Keep yourself posted on how you can get involved in the Didcot Garden Town plans. Just enter 
your email address to get the latest news https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT 
 
Friday 7 September 2019 – Greenline view  
We want you to be involved and kept up to date on all the interesting projects in Didcot Garden 
Town and surrounding villages – get yourself signed up to our regular updates 
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT 

 

 South 
Twitter 

South Facebook Vale 
Twitter 

 
 

Vale 
Facebook 

 

 

Total of 
engagements 

3,616 viewed 
post 

99 clicked the link 

2.7% 
engagement 

7,117 viewed post 

1,051 read whole 
post 

74 clicked the link 

1% engagement 

3,041 viewed 
post 

56 clicked the 
link 

1.8% 
engagement 

4,780 viewed post 

290 read whole 
post 

23 clicked the link 

0.4% engagement 

Page 51

https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/registerDGT


 

Community Engagement Summary – Appendix 4 

Proposed Engagement Activities - 2020 

1. Project Priorities Online Survey 
2. Newsletter 
3. Sounding Boards (pending approval) 

ORGANISATION PURPOSE SUMMARY 

ORGANISATION PURPOSE 
BOBMK – Urban Design Achieving good urban design in changing times (there are 14 

subscribing local authorities) 
Campaign to Protect 
Rural England (CPRE) 

We are CPRE, the countryside charity. We want a thriving, 
beautiful countryside for everyone. 

Culham Science Centre The hottest place on the planet and home to some of the 
planet’s coolest science. Owned and managed by the United 
Kingdom Atomic Energy Agency… 

Didcot Access Didcot Access Group (DAG) is a local group run to ensure 
that everything that Didcot has to offer is available to 
as many people as possible, particularly allowing freedom of 
access to all who have physical or sensory difficulties. 

Didcot First Didcot First is an Independent organisation, committed to 
connecting business and community so that Didcot is a 
positive place to live, work, invest and grow. 

Didcot Garden Town 
Advisory Board 

Advise on matters related to implementation of Didcot Garden 
Town. 

Didcot Town Council We strive to make Didcot a better place to live, work and play. 
Earth Trust Our Mission is to give people access to and experience of the 

environment through the natural green spaces we manage 
and together understand what we can do to care for the 
planet. 

Harwell Campus  The UK home for innovation. A thriving campus that fires and 
inspires technological and scientific excellence 

Harwell Space Cluster 
Network 

Harwell Space Cluster is the gateway to the UK space sector 
with 92 Space organisations employing 1040 people. 

Homes England We’re the government’s housing accelerator.  
Housing, Communities 
and Local Government 
(MHCLG) 

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government’s (formerly the Department for Communities and 
Local Government) job is to create great places to live and 
work, and to give more power to local people to shape what 
happens in their area. 

Milton Park (MEPC) MEPC develops and manages some of the UK’s best 
commercial real estate and provides consistently stron, long 
term, financial performance for our investors. 

Page 52



 

Community Engagement Summary – Appendix 4 

MultiCAV (connected 
and autonomous 
vehicles) consortium 

MultiCAV is an integrated Mobility as A Service (MAAS) trial 
that brings together autonomous vehicles including shuttles, 
taxis, 12 metre buses and electric bikes, all accessible via a 
single journey planning platform. The trial of the vehicles is to 
be done in Didcot Garden Town with a focus on journeys 
between Milton Park and Didcot Railway Station. 

Planning Officers 
Society 

The credible voice of public sector planners in England 

Oxfordshire Garden 
Communities Network 

Resource sharing network comprised of the five Oxfordshire 
based garden communities 

Reverends of Great 
Western Park and All 
Saints Wards 

• At Great Western Park Church we are a growing 
community of believers, drawn from the newest housing 
estate in Didcot and the surrounding areas. 

• All Saints’ Church is part of the Church of England and 
our services range from traditional to informal. 

SOFEA Access to quality food and education are basic human rights. 
The mission of our charitable organization is to see that these 
rights are met for vulnerable individuals and communities. 

Welcome Break Group 
at the Baptist Church 
 

Welcome Break provides a meeting place for the older people 
of the Didcot area each Thursday afternoon from 2:30 pm 
during school term time. 

 

Page 53



December 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 5 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR APPROVALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 54



APPENDIX 5: Proposed timeline for approval of governance, finance plan 
and project priorities 

JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Activity Proposed Milestone 

Senior Management Team (SMT) 2 Weeks before Joint Scrutiny Committee 
date 

Joint Scrutiny Committee Meeting 16 January 2020 
DIDCOT GARDEN TOWN ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 
Activity Proposed Milestone 

Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board – 
discuss governance, project priorities 
and community engagement activity 

Meeting to be held following Joint Scrutiny 
Committee meeting 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
Activity Proposed Milestone 

Send out newsletter Following DGT AB board meeting 

Prepare community engagement plan Begin work following approval of
governance model 

Launch event for sounding boards 

Hold event following approval of governance 
model and with consideration of resolution 
of HIF and South Oxfordshire Local Plan 
activity 

*CABINET DATE
(work to begin following Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting date)
Activity Proposed Milestone 

Vale Cabinet briefing 10 January 2020 
Vale Cabinet 31 January 2020 
South Cabinet briefing 7 January 2020 
South Cabinet 30 January 2020 
FINANCE APPROVAL 
Activity Proposed Milestone 

Vale Council meeting TBC following news from Homes England 
on outcome of funding bid for 2019-20 

South Council 
meeting 

TBC following news from Homes England 
on outcome of funding bid for 2019-20 

*Cabinet approval needed for governance and project priorities

Page 55



Scrutiny work programme - 3 January 2020 Page 1 08/01/20

Scrutiny work programme
3 January 2020

MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 
16 Jan 2020

Oxfordshire Growth 
Board governance

To consider governance 
arrangements

Councillor Judy 
Roberts

Andrew Down
andrew.down@southand
vale.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 
16 Jan 2020

Didcot Garden Town To consider governance 
arrangements, funding 
allocations and priorities

Councillor Judy 
Roberts

Marybeth Harasz
marybeth.harasz@south
andvale.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 
3 Mar 2020

Draft corporate plan 
2020-2024 and delivery 
framework

To comment on the draft 
corporate plan and delivery 
framework  

Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Michelle Wells
michelle.wells@southand
vale.gov.uk 
Ben Coleman 
ben.coleman@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

Items for future meetings (dates to be determined)

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 
June 2020?

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 To respond to the 
consultation draft plan  

Councillor Catherine 
Webber

Adrian Duffield
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Civil parking 
enforcement

Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby

John Backley
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ben.coleman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ben.coleman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Scrutiny work programme - 3 January 2020 Page 2 08/01/20

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Homes in multiple 
occupation

Implementation of legislation Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby

Phil Ealey
phil.ealey@southandvale
.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Unlawful encampments Councillor Jenny 
Hannaby

Liz Hayden
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Inter-authority 
agreement

Cabinet member for 
corporate services

Adrianna Partridge
adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk 

P
age 57

mailto:phil.ealey@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:phil.ealey@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Governance of the Oxfordshire Growth Board
	Growth Board Review Scope

	7 Didcot Garden Town
	Committee
	Recommendation

	Title
	Title
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Strategic Objectives
	Strategic Objectives
	Background
	Background
	Financial Implications
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Legal Implications
	Other Implications
	Other Implications
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Background Papers
	Background Papers

	16 Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee DGT v.2.pdf
	Committee
	Recommendation

	Title
	Title
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Strategic Objectives
	Strategic Objectives
	Background
	Background
	Financial Implications
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Legal Implications
	Risks
	Risks
	Other Implications
	Other Implications
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Background Papers
	Background Papers


	16 Jan 2020 Joint Scrutiny Committee Paper.pdf
	Joint Scrutiny Committee
	Recommendation

	Didcot Garden Town
	Didcot Garden Town
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Strategic Objectives
	Strategic Objectives
	Background
	Background
	Financial Implications
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Legal Implications
	Risks
	Risks
	Other Implications
	Other Implications
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Background Papers
	Background Papers


	ADP484C.tmp
	Joint Scrutiny Committee
	Recommendation

	Didcot Garden Town
	Didcot Garden Town
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Strategic Objectives
	Strategic Objectives
	Background
	Background
	Financial Implications
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Legal Implications
	Risks
	Risks
	Other Implications
	Other Implications
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Background Papers
	Background Papers


	ADP28FF.tmp
	Joint Scrutiny Committee
	Recommendation

	Didcot Garden Town
	Didcot Garden Town
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Purpose of Report
	Strategic Objectives
	Strategic Objectives
	Background
	Background
	Financial Implications
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Legal Implications
	Risks
	Risks
	Other Implications
	Other Implications
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Conclusion
	Background Papers
	Background Papers



	8 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings



